
  
OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK             

 
 

COUNCIL MINUTES 
 
September 9, 2010 
 
 
The City Council of the City of Mesa met in a Study Session in the lower level meeting room of the 
Council Chambers, 57 East 1st Street, on September 9, 2010 at 7:31 a.m. 
 
 
COUNCIL PRESENT 
 
Scott Smith 
Alex Finter 
Dina Higgins 
Kyle Jones 
Dennis Kavanaugh 
Dave Richins 

COUNCIL ABSENT 
 
Scott Somers 

OFFICERS PRESENT 
 
Christopher Brady 
Debbie Spinner 
Linda Crocker 

   
Mayor Smith excused Councilmember Richins from the beginning of the meeting; he arrived at 7:35 
a.m. He excused Councilmember Somers from the entire meeting. 
 
(Items on the agenda were discussed out of order, but for purposes of clarity will remain as listed on the 
agenda.)     
 
1. Review items on the agenda for the September 13, 2010 Regular Council meeting. 

 
All of the items on the September 13, 2010 agenda were reviewed among Council and staff and 
the following was noted: 

 
 Conflicts of interest declared:  None  
 
 Items added to the consent agenda: None 
 
 Items removed from the consent agenda: None 
 
2. Hear a presentation, discuss and provide direction on the Zoning Code Update. 
 
 Zoning/Civil Hearing Administrator Gordon Sheffield addressed the Council and advised that 

staff was planning to prepare a draft of the ordinance on the Zoning Update so that the process 
can move forward toward final adoption. He displayed a PowerPoint presentation (See 
Attachment 2) and noted that the various aspects of the Code are designed to achieve a 
balance of land use, impact and form. 

 



Study Session 
September 9, 2010 
Page 2 
 
 

 Mr. Sheffield summarized revisions that apply to single residences. He referenced “Accessory 
Living Quarters” (ALQ), commonly referred to as “mother-in-law quarters,” and noted that the 
current stipulation, that these facilities “shall not be leased or rented,” would be deleted from the 
Code. Mr. Sheffield noted that when these quarters are no longer needed for their original, 
intended purpose, the property owner may wish to rent the quarters to generate extra income. 
He stated that the property then could be defined as a multi-family dwelling rather than a single 
family residence. Mr. Sheffield added that enforcement of the current regulation would be 
extremely difficult and said that staff proposes to delete the stipulation. 

 
 Councilwoman Higgins expressed opposition to staff’s proposal and said that an ALQ renter 

may involve more than one person with several vehicles. She stated the opinion that this type of 
situation would be inappropriate in a single-family neighborhood.  

 
 Mr. Sheffield clarified that the proposed change includes a provision that the size limitation of 

the ALQ is reduced from a maximum of 50% of the size of the primary dwelling to a maximum of 
30%.  

 
 Councilwoman Higgins noted that a large family could live in a small ALQ. She reiterated that 

the proposal would be detrimental to single-family neighborhoods in Mesa. 
  
 Mr. Sheffield said he was reviewing certain areas of the Code to ensure that the Council was in 

agreement with the direction taken by staff. 
 
 Councilmember Richins commented that this approach has been successful in a few western 

cities and he said that the concept has contributed to revitalization efforts. He stated that in west 
Mesa, areas exist where the children have grown up and left and as a result, area businesses 
and school populations have suffered. Councilmember Richins cited Austin, Texas, as a 
community in which this approach has been successful. He suggested that the Code include 
issues such as a minimum lot size and parking restrictions. 

 
 Vice Mayor Jones stated the opinion that a single residence with an ALQ was acceptable and 

that there would be no impact on the neighborhood. 
 
 Mayor Smith said that Councilwoman Higgins made some good points, but he added that 

governments tend to over-regulate for the exception. He suggested that the City’s regulations 
would be more effective addressing issues such as parking rather than attempting to control the 
number of people residing in an ALQ. 

 
 Councilmember Finter noted that he had a home with an accessory building that housed his 

mother until she passed away. He expressed opposition to allowing duplexes in single-family 
neighborhoods and he added that regulating parking in neighborhoods was a very difficult issue. 

 
 In response to a question from Councilmember Richins, Mr. Sheffield clarified that most ALQs 

were attached to the primary residence. He noted that a detached ALQ must be located within 
the buildable area of the lot and comply with the same setbacks as the primary residence. 

 
 Mr. Sheffield suggested that the Council’s concerns regarding parking could be addressed by 

requiring an ALQ to have a designated on-site parking space.  
  



Study Session 
September 9, 2010 
Page 3 
 
 

 Councilwoman Higgins indicated that at the present time, a business cannot be operated out of 
a home, but noted that this proposal would allow a rental property business to exist. She stated 
that she could support any family member or friend living in an ALQ as long as it was not a 
money-making operation. 

 
 Councilmember Finter cited an example in his district of duplexes where parking occurs in the 

front yards, which is not prohibited by the Code and negatively impacts the neighborhood.  
 
 Mayor Smith stated the opinion that Councilmember Finter’s example was unrelated to the 

situation with ALQs. He said that a duplex or a four-plex presents a completely different 
scenario than an ALQ. 

 
 Councilmember Richins suggested a compromise that would allow an ALQ to be rented when 

the owner resides in the primary residence. He concurred with Councilmember Finter that 
allowing an owner to rent out both the primary residence and the ALQ would be unacceptable. 

 
 Responding to comments by Councilmember Finter, Mr. Sheffield advised that an ALQ could 

not serve as a small group home for recovering addicts or individuals transitioning from the 
justice system. He noted that the State of California requires municipalities to develop 
provisions which allow for an ALQ. Mr. Sheffield added that prohibitions against renting an ALQ 
would be difficult to enforce until a problem was identified.   

  
 Mayor Smith expressed support for regulations that address an infringement of the rights of 

other people.  
 
 Vice Mayor Jones commented that Mesa probably has many residences that do not conform to 

the existing Code because of ALQs.  He stated the opinion that the City should not over-
regulate for potential problems. 

 
 Councilmember Finter said he spoke from experience in that he has owned property that 

included a 1,500 square foot accessory building or “granny flat” utilized by an elderly family 
member. He noted that the current owner utilizes the property in the same manner, but 
expressed concern that other similar properties could develop into dual rentals in single-family 
residential areas.   

 
 Mayor Smith noted that the majority of ALQs range in size from 400 to 600 square feet and 

most are not equipped with a full kitchen. He expressed support for a requirement that the 
primary residence be owner occupied and also favored government regulations to protect 
neighborhoods from negative activity. 

 
 Councilwoman Higgins said there was no system in place to know which units were being 

rented, and she voiced concern regarding the potential decline of neighborhoods, particularly in 
west Mesa. 

 
 Mr. Sheffield commented that there are licensing requirements for multiple rental units.  
 
 Councilmember Richins said that although he appreciated Councilwoman Higgins’ concern, as 

the representative for west Mesa, he supported the rental opportunities available from ALQs 
and added that ALQs could be a revitalization tool for older areas.  



Study Session 
September 9, 2010 
Page 4 
 
 

  
 Mayor Smith stated that it was the consensus of the Council that staff identify the activities in 

the area of an ALQ that would be detrimental to the neighborhood. 
 
 Mr. Sheffield reported that the next topic related to single residence districts that face on to an 

arterial street. He stated that by utilizing a Special Use Permit (SUP), small retail shops, 
restaurants and offices would be allowed in these districts without rezoning.  

 
 Mayor Smith commented that currently there are areas where large houses that face arterial 

streets have been turned into offices. He stated that under the new revision, a residence could 
also be converted into a small retail business or restaurant so long as the business area did not 
exceed 1500 square feet. He added that a SUP would be required and that it would not be 
necessary for a request to go through Planning & Zoning or the Council.  

 
 Mr. Sheffield said that the businesses would also have to provide onsite parking. He advised 

that the owner would pay lower fees to obtain a SUP through the Board of Adjustment. Mr. 
Sheffield stated that a public review and posting would still occur and neighbors  would be 
notified. 

 
 Councilwoman Higgins expressed her opposition to the change and stated the opinion that 

allowing this activity would cause a decline in the neighborhood.  
 
 In response to questions from Councilwoman Higgins, Mr. Sheffield explained that the 

commercial activity area could not be more than 1,500 square feet and that the structure could 
also be occupied as a residence.  

 
 Mayor Smith commented that in order to obtain the business, the resident would need to go 

through the process of posting for approval of an SUP. 
 
 Vice Mayor Jones stated that it was necessary for the properties along University to go through 

Planning and Zoning to be rezoned in order to allow a business to operate in a residential area. 
He said with the proposed revision, the same major arterial street would now go to the Board of 
Adjustment to obtain an SUP. 

 
 Councilmember Richins expressed concerns regarding the council giving up regulatory authority 

as well as the slow advancing of businesses into residential areas. He said he did see the need 
for revisions as there are some residential homes that are neither viable for raising children nor 
desirable to be used as rental properties due to heavy traffic. He added that he would be more 
comfortable with developing a regulatory scheme was developed that covered the use of these 
residential structures. 

 
 Mayor Smith proposed that specific areas be identified and designated for business activities, 

which would allow the Council the opportunity to look at the areas. He explained that this would 
protect other residential areas from having businesses come into their neighborhoods and also 
prevent changes allowing business activity through the Board of Adjustment without Council 
approval. 

 
 Councilmember Richins said that he would feel more comfortable if specific areas were 

identified and considered.  



Study Session 
September 9, 2010 
Page 5 
 
 

 
 Councilwoman Higgins expressed concern with regard to changing the current procedure when 

only a small area would benefit. She said that this revision was a way to allow individuals a less 
expensive way to obtain an SUP through the Board of Adjustment. Councilmember Higgins 
suggested that an alternate fee structure for these particular residents be developed and that 
the Council maintain control. 

 
 Councilmember Richins stated that the only residences that could be considered for an SUP 

would be those that occupied corner lots. He said that would limit the ability to designate 
specific sections of residential roadway that could be considered for business use. 

 
 Mr. Sheffield highlighted problems with mid-block residential businesses as opposed to corner 

lot businesses, parking and accessibility to the back of the house. He noted that generally, mid-
block houses were too close to the property line, making it difficult to access the sides of the 
building. 

 
 Mayor Smith cited an example of old restaurants on the corner lot of 44th Street in Phoenix. He 

explained that these neighborhood restaurants in old residences were not only successful, but 
they were a benefit to the neighborhood. Mayor Smith expressed concern with the City over 
regulating instead of encouraging positive improvements to unoccupied areas. He said this 
could be a benefit to the neighborhood and the City.  

 
 Mr. Sheffield advised that by restricting the size of the business to 1,500 square feet and limiting 

the amount of space for parking, there would be less impact on the community. 
 
 Councilmember Finter expressed concern regarding the challenges surrounding residential 

corner-lot businesses on a major arterial road leading into a neighborhood. He described 
potential problems such as increased garbage, noise and the detrimental impact on property 
values.  

 
 Mayor Smith identified current problems with arterial corner lot homes. He pointed out the 

possibility for these homes to become abandoned, un-kept, boarded up, or a slumlord rental, as 
they are not suitable for any other use. 

 
 Councilmember Finter expressed opposition to the idea that retail use of a residential building 

would be an improvement.  
  
 In response to Councilmember Finter’s comment, Mayor Smith stated that retail use would be 

an improvement if accomplished in the right manner, with quality being a requirement for the 
business. 

 
 Mr. Sheffield cited an example of the size of floor area for a corner-lot business. He identified a 

barber shop located on University Drive that was a conversion of an old house that fronts onto 
an arterial street. He said the area of the building was approximately 1,000 square feet, which 
was the scale to be considered for business use when a residential structure is fronted onto an 
arterial street. 

 
 Councilmember Finter indicated support for Mr. Sheffield’s example regarding the scale and 

type of a residential business to be considered. 



Study Session 
September 9, 2010 
Page 6 
 
 

 
 Councilmember Kavanaugh concurred with Councilmember Finter regarding potential 

consequences and the effect some businesses could have on the community. 
 
 Mr. Sheffield added that the idea of an Overlay District was something that could be pursued.  
 
 Mayor Smith expressed concern in regards to being too cautious. He cited other neighboring 

communities such as Tempe and Phoenix that have successfully created a framework that 
worked and encouraged high uses. He pointed out homes on University Drive that are 
unoccupied and boarded up due to the fact that the property could only be used as a residence 
or an office.  Mayor Smith stated that unused structures bring down the neighborhoods as well 
as the entire City. He added that the Council should encourage the investment and 
development of neighborhoods instead of focusing on possible exceptions. 

 
 Councilmember Richins expressed support in allowing the various land use experiment within 

the new zoning code. He said that some kind of regulatory change needed to be embraced and 
the free market encouraged to embrace such changes. He stated that surrounding property 
owners should have the opportunity to provide input and the Council meeting would be an 
appropriate venue.   

 
 Mayor Smith thanked staff for their efforts that advance the cause and create incentives to 

benefit the citizens. He said that the Council could demand standards and limitations that 
encourage good investment, and added that staff had come up with “a beginning” to what is a 
middle ground that concentrates on the facilitation. 

 
 Vice Mayor Jones expressed opposition with leaving the decisions to the Board of Adjustments 

and said that he would like to see a process where Council maintained control in order to 
protect the neighborhoods. 

 
 Mr. Sheffield briefly remarked that a Residential Small Lot (RSL) District would be added.  
 

Mr. Sheffield highlighted the Revisions to the Multiple Resident Unit (MRU) District that fronts 
onto arterial streets. He advised that the MRU would take the same direction from Council as 
the Single Residence District. Mr. Sheffield outlined the proposed Density Increases as follows: 
 

 RM-2:  From 12 to 15 units an acre 

 RM-3: From 17 to 20 units an acre 

 RM-4: From 25-30 units an acre  
 

Mr. Sheffield noted that the increase would allow properties that are not conforming to the 
ordinance to now conform, which would be a benefit.  He reported that the RM-5 District was 
added. He added that currently there were not any RM 5 Districts however residents could 
rezone to have up to 43 units an acre. (See Page 3 of Attachment 2) 

 
In response to Councilmember Richins and Mayor Smith’s questions regarding the Urban 
Designator Options, Mr. Sheffield advised that he believed that the height limit a structure could 
be built was four stories or approximately 46 or 48 feet. He added that he would check with 
Building & Safety to confirm that information and provide it to the Mayor’s Chief of Staff. 
 



Study Session 
September 9, 2010 
Page 7 
 
 

Councilmember Richins requested that industry trends be researched and that the City’s zoning 
regulation conforms to the industry trend as opposed to an arbitrary number.  
 
Mr. Sheffield summarized the revisions to the Commercial District, which included a “by-right” 
option for MRU in commercial districts. He stated this would guarantee a certain amount of 
commercial activity and also noted that up to 25 dwelling units per acre could be added in the C-
2 District.  
 
In response to questions from Mayor Smith, Mr. Sheffield explained that in the existing C-2 
District, the new provision would allow up to 25 units per acre. 
 
Mr. Sheffield advised that an option for Commercial Plant Nurseries was provided in the LC (C-
2) District. He stated this would allow Plant Nurseries to go into a C-2 District through the SUP 
process with the Board of Adjustment. He further advised that the new revisions would allow 
Research & Development Uses in GC(C-3) Districts and MX Districts.  Mr. Sheffield said that 
the revision allowed personal services, small retail and small restaurants in the OC District with 
a 1500 square foot limitation.  He added that Farmers Markets would now be allowed in the LC 
District with a Temporary Use Permit (TUP). (See Page 6 of Attachment 2) 
 
In response to a series of questions from Councilwoman Higgins, Mr. Sheffield explained that 
currently, personal services were only allowed in C-1 Districts and precluded from C-2 Districts. 
He said that the new provision would provide for the activity in a C-2 District on a limited scale. 
 
Councilwoman Higgins expressed opposition with the “by-right” option that would allow personal 
services to expand into the C-2 Districts. She stated that she would be more supportive of the 
new provision if it were only allowable with an SUP with each area being looked at individually. 
 
Mayor Smith said that Councilwoman Higgins made some good points but he noted that he did 
not like the ever expanding list of SUP’s. He further commented that there were policy decisions 
that should not be considered under a SUP. 
 
Councilwoman Higgins remarked that she would not like to see the personal services expanded 
into the OC District.  
 
Mayor Smith reiterated the statements of Councilwoman Higgins in that she would not like to 
see the expansion as a by-right, however, she would be agreeable to it being allowed with a 
permit.  
 
Mr. Sheffield continued with the presentation and explained that a restaurant would be allowable 
in an OS District as an accessory once an office complex was in place. He said the restaurant 
would not be allowable in an OS District as a by-right stand alone activity. 
 
In response to questions from Councilwoman Higgins, Mr. Sheffield proposed that the 
restaurant be designated as an accessory based on the office space being at least 5,000 to 
10,000 square feet.  
 
Councilwoman Higgins expressed support for Mr. Sheffield’s proposal as she believed it could 
make a difference depending on the location of the restaurant. 
 



Study Session 
September 9, 2010 
Page 8 
 
 

Mr. Sheffield stated that he would pursue a requirement that an accessory restaurant be based 
on the presence of at least 5,000 to 10,000 square feet of office space. 
 
Mr. Sheffield commented that Farmers Markets are currently required in a C-3 District or 
Industrial District and would now be allowable in a C-2 or C-1 District with a TUP.  
 
Mr. Sheffield continued with the presentation and highlighted the small scale commercial 
revisions. He advised that “bars” had been broken out as a separate use and require a SUP in 
the C-2 District and would be by-right in the C-3 District. He summarized the division of the 
Recreation Classification (See Page 4 of Attachment 2). 
 
In response to questions from Councilwoman Higgins, Mr. Sheffield clarified that the LC District 
is now the C-2 District and the GC District is now the C-3 District. He further explained that if a 
pool hall had a restaurant liquor license, it would be a by-right condition in the C-2 District and if 
the facility had a bar liquor license, it would be a CUP in C-2 District. (See Page 4 of Attachment 
2) 

 
Councilmember Finter identified a business on Power Road & University Drive that was 
successful. He expressed concern with the possibility of a bar or pool hall going into a Fry’s 
shopping center with families walking through the parking lot with groceries. 

 
Mr. Sheffield confirmed that large scale commercial recreation continued to be a C-3 activity. He 
summarized the revisions of the Employment/Industrial District and explained that recycling was 
required to be in an M-2 District with a CUP.  He further explained that recycling had been 
broken out by scale, allowing small scale recycling to go into commercial districts. He added 
that an outdoor recycling activity may require a SUP. Mr. Sheffield said that in the case of a 
major recycling activity, industrial zoning would be required. He reported that airport activities 
were added at the request of the airport. He stated that aircraft maintenance, refueling and 
terminal parking lots which were required to be indoors in the Employment District would now be 
allowable outdoors. He clarified again that plant nurseries would be allowed in the Employment 
District with a SUP. Mr. Sheffield informed the Council that a High Impact (HI) District had been 
added. He said currently there are PEP, M-1 and M-2 districts and that the HI District would be 
the functional equivalent of an M-3 District.  He noted that currently, extremely high impact 
activities are required to be in an M-2 District with a CUP. He added that this option would 
remove some of the legislative options the Council has in considering HI cases.  He also noted 
that HI activities would now be required to go into an HI District, which would give the Council 
full legislative options in considering those particular cases. (See Page 4 of Attachment 2). 
 
Mr. Sheffield confirmed that the HI District would include the Chrome Rubber Plant (CRM), CMC 
Steel, chemical plants and industries of that scale. 

 
Councilmember Richins expressed concern regarding the manner in which the Council would 
address distribution sites if the Medical Marijuana Law should pass. 

 
In response to a question from Councilmember Richins City Manager Christopher Brady 
explained that he had been provided some feedback regarding medical marijuana distribution 
and said that staff would make a presentation to the Council in that regard. 

 



Study Session 
September 9, 2010 
Page 9 
 
 

Planning Director John Wesley asked if Council would be inclined to hold discussion on TMX vs. 
Form-Based Codes until next week.  
 
Mayor Smith stated that there was Council concurrence that the presentation concerning TMX 
vs. Form-Based Codes be continued to a future study session. 

 
Major Smith thanked Mr. Sheffield and staff for their efforts and hard work. 

 
3. Hear a presentation and discuss the Retail Analysis for the proposed Spring Training sites. 
  
 Todd E. Kjar, Principal for Brown Group Inc., reported that he met with Chicago Cubs 

Representative David Scholl, representing Vantage Partners, and in that meeting he heard their 
vision for what they plan to do once a site was selected.  He stated that the Chicago Cubs 
envision a new stadium modeled in the spirit of Wrigley Field in Chicago which would include 
specialty retail shops, restaurants, clubs and art galleries. He noted that not only would there be 
a retail component, but there would also be offices, nutrition centers and a rehabilitation center 
for the players. He added that the Cubs would also conduct the yearly draft at this location.  

 
Mr. Kjar informed the Council that in order to justify continual traffic in and out of the area, the 
new site would need an anchor. He stated that they were not sure what the degree of pull would 
be to these sites on a 365 day basis. He remarked that the presentation should simplify their 
report of the sites to be considered 

  
John Tippetts, Vice President of Operations and Information Systems for Munson Research  
displayed a PowerPoint presentation (See Attachment 1) and provided a brief overview of their 
company along with an overview of how Munson Research provided retailers, developers and 
governments with information necessary for them to make the best decisions. 
 
Mr. Tippetts reported that his company was commissioned to analyze three possible sites for 
the Cubs Sports Complex. The three sites to be considered are as follows: 
 

 University Drive & North Mesa Drive (Downtown site). 

 North Dobson Road & West 8th Street (Riverview site). 

 East Thomas Road & North Recker (Recker site). 
 

Mr. Tippetts stated that his firm was not asked to give a recommendation, but to provide an 
analysis of each individual site which included characteristics and site trade demographics. He 
briefly reviewed the individual site characteristics, demographic characteristics and the 
deliverables considered for each site. (See Page 5 of Attachment 1).  
 
Mayor Smith stated that if the site was located right on Main Street where people exited the light 
rail, it would be a greater benefit. He added that walking half a mile and being that far removed 
from light rail would not be a benefit. 
 
Mr. Tippitts remarked that the stadium traffic would benefit from the light rail, but noted that 
shoppers would not walk more than a half mile to shop.  He added that light rail was not part of 
the research or consideration of this site. 
 



Study Session 
September 9, 2010 
Page 10 
 
 

Mayor Smith commented that he understood that the light rail was not part of the study and 
stated his opinion that it was an issue that should not be ignored. He agreed that for retail use at 
the downtown site, the light rail would not be used on a daily basis. 
 
In response to a series of questions by Councilmember Kavanaugh, Mr. Tippitts clarified that 
the analysis on the one, three and five mile radius for the Downtown site was inadvertently 
omitted but he would be able to provide that information to Council. 
 
Mr. Tippets remarked that people would walk a distance for a sporting event, but that retail 
customers would not like to walk that far if they had things to carry. 
 
Mayor Smith remarked on whether people would walk in 120 degree heat in July and August. 
He stated that during those months, people may choose to drive to the site which would be 
more accessible and make the trip on foot as minimal as possible.  

 
 Councilmember Finter stated that 2016 was the completion date for the light rail construction 

and said it would be interesting to see how the time line for the completion of the light rail would 
coincide with completion of Wrigleyville.  

 
 Mr. Kjar advised that most retailers are working on a three to four year timeline. He said that to 

a retailer the year 2016 is not far off. 
 
 Mr. Tippitts advised that when numerous retailers are together it draws people to the area. He 

pointed out that the downtown area does not have a lot of retailers and few major retail brands. 
He stated that traffic counts were a strength for this site and that the average daily traffic counts 
on the major streets was 59,300. Mr. Tippitts added that though this site had the highest traffic 
counts it also had reduced speed limits and numerous intersections with traffic signals. He 
continued by saying that visibility at this site was a weakness. He stated that the flat terrain 
allowed people driving past to see the stadium however any retail would be over shadowed.  He 
noted that there was little retail competition and that the high number of vacancies could be 
potential competition for retail space. 

 
 In response to a question from Councilwoman Higgins, Mr. Kjar explained that the synergy 

created by the LDS Temple was not studied. He said he was not sure how much cross traffic 
there would be from the Temple visitors.   

 
 Mr. Tippitts added that there were many private and civic buildings and organizations like the 

Temple that were not included in the report.  
 
 Responding to a series of questions from Councilwoman Higgins, Mr. Kjar clarified that many of 

the vacant retail centers had big boxes that could not be used again.  He said that the large 
boxes would now become a tear downs which would mean starting over which might not be 
affordable. He reported that 20% to 30% of vacant big boxes would not be used again and that 
was why it would be more expensive to develop and would require a more complicated 
entitlement process. 

 
Mayor Smith cited a string of retail buildings located on Southern Avenue that potentially may 
never be used again. He noted that the City was looking at the possibility of some mixed uses 



Study Session 
September 9, 2010 
Page 11 
 
 

for those buildings and added that it would make it as easy as possible to go through the 
entitlement process. 
 
Mr. Kjar commented on the issues of properties being down zoned and overall changes in 
zoning which could make things more complicated. 
 
Councilmember Finter stated he received information that the new Wrigley West would be a 
unique high quality regional draw and could possibly overcome some of the weaknesses 
outlined. 
 
In response to questions from Mayor Smith, Mr. Kjar explained that the issue would be finding 
what will create a continual draw for the entire year.  He stated that one of the challenges is that 
there are only 17 spring training games. He advised that he reviewed the Gateway Project in 
Glendale and when it was not a game day there was not much activity in that area. He added 
that the draw for Wrigley West could not be determined in this report and it may not be retail. 
 
Mayor Smith remarked that retail was what had been suggested as the base because it was 
what they had data on and could use. He stated that the analysis included entertainment for the 
area, however, since it was unknown what the Cubs would want, only basic knowledge was 
applied. 
 
Mr. Kjar agreed with Mayor Smith that until they know what the draw would be, it can’t be 
assessed. He said they had applied traditional retail criteria and made certain assumptions 
given certain circumstances to determine if it could be successful. 
 
In response to a series of questions from Mayor Smith, Mr. Kjar stated that, for example, if a 
Bass Pro Shop were placed at any of the sites, any weaknesses could be overcome.  
 
Mr. Tippitts advised they made an assumption that it would be a Wrigley type retail center with 
specialty and lifestyle stores. 
 
Mr. Tippitts continued the presentation and highlighted the Riverview site and its existing retail 
uses. He reported that it had primary trade areas, excellent access and the second largest 20 
minute drive time area out of the three sites. He cited some of the Riverview sites’ best 
characteristics as follows: excellent highway and freeway access; is the closest site to Sky 
Harbor Airport; the retail synergy; national brands already existed; people would drive a long 
distance to get there; visibility; and it could be seen from the 202 and surface streets.  He 
commented that the retail competition was a weakness because of the limited retailers that 
could be targeted due to the abundance of retailers already in the area. He noted that the 
potential for additional retail was limited. 
 
In response to a series of questions from Councilmember Kavanaugh, Mr. Kjar explained that 
the expansion of Tempe Marketplace could be both a strength and a weakness for Riverview in 
that it would create more competition for retail placement. He added that the more competition 
there is, the more difficult it would be to attract customers to Riverview.  
 
Mayor Smith advised that he had seen the plans for the expansion and that it was his 
understanding that the expansion was for mixed use and not retail centered. He also stated that 
he believed the option had lapsed and that the lease had been put on hold.  



Study Session 
September 9, 2010 
Page 12 
 
 

 
 Mr. Tippetts continued with the presentation and said there could be complementary retailers 

that could be attracted which would increase the retail synergy at the site. 
 
 Mayor Smith remarked that a very unique “Chicago centric” entertainment that was not 

something already in the area would create the synergy. He also noted that the addition of 
another national food outlet would make the site a more competitive venue. 

 
 Mr. Tippetts commented that there was an abundance of retail in around the site and that there 

was lease space available that could act as a weakness as it creates competition.  
 
 In response to Councilwoman Higgins questions, Mr. Tippets advised that there are other 

formats that would compliment what already exist at Riverview and Tempe Marketplace. He 
said that additions that were not national chains would actually be a second phase of this 
project.   

 
 Mayor Smith commented that this was just a foundation and that their intent was not to plan 

Wrigleyville. He stated the opinion that the draw would not be a national chain and that it had to 
be unique to the area. He cited the examples of Toby Keith’s at Tempe Marketplace and Matta’s 
at Riverview. He stated that there would be some Chicago specific entities that the Cubs were 
working with and that it was too early for the Cubs to announce what those entities were. Mayor 
Smith added that the information presented was meaningful in identifying the standard 
weaknesses, strengths and challenges needed to imagine what type of regional draw would 
work for Wrigleyville.  

 
 In response to questions from Councilwoman Higgins, Mr. Tippets explained that the amount of 

retail space and investment needed would go back to the uniqueness factor. He stated that if it 
was a unique type of shopping experience for the consumer you could add numerous space, 
however if it was just the usual shopping experience, then additional retail space should not be 
added.  

 
 Councilwoman Higgins remarked that Toby Keith’s Bar and Grill was a regional draw but did not 

have the synergy to develop out the area as was expected.  
 
 Mr. Kjar responded that if the intent was to fill in more retail categories, it could be difficult 

because the area was already built out. He said that Tempe Marketplace and Riverview 
together were a total of 2.6 million square feet of retail space. He compared this to the Arizona 
Mills Mall on I-10, which he said was 1.2 million square feet of retail space. He remarked that 
the good news was that Wrigleyville was poised to be a phenomenal regional pull for the entire 
Valley.  He added that if a few more businesses like Toby Keith’s were pulled in where the 
stadium will be located then it could accomplish what they want.  

 
 Councilwoman Higgins stated her opinion that Toby Keith’s was not serving as the spring board 

for the area that they would have hoped it would. She remarked that to indicate that a regional 
draw would make a center vibrant was not necessarily a reality. 

 
 Mayor Smith advised that Wrigleyville was not the Council’s investment to plan and that they 

needed to look at what weaknesses and obstacles the Cubs would have to overcome.  He 
stated that the reality was that they don't know how much retail space the Cubs want to put in. 



Study Session 
September 9, 2010 
Page 13 
 
 

He said that Wrigleyville would not be the major shopping area in the City of Mesa and that it 
would not be the difference that would balance the budget. He added that it was unique 
because it makes the complex viable and it keeps the Cubs in Mesa. Mayor Smith commented 
that he appreciated the information provided. He added that there was an opportunity for 
Wrigleyville to succeed because the Cubs would have the ability to draw on the unique 
amenities, brands and specialty stores that draw people to the area. He commented that if the 
Cubs draw on another chain store at either place then it would be just another center. 

 
 Mr. Tippitts advises that this was a very preliminary study and that tenant mix could be very 

tricky. He said that each site had a different strength and weaknesses for different tenants and 
he added that the report gave a basic foundation for retailers to look at. 

 
 Mr. Tippitts continued with the presentation and highlighted the Recker site.  He said it had a 

fairly large 20 minute drive time because of access. He said the primary trade area is somewhat 
limited due to competing shopping centers. He stated that access was a strength due to 
excellent freeway on and off ramps. He noted that retail synergy was a weakness as there was 
not a lot of retail around that site.  He also said that traffic counts were a weakness as there was 
only a 6,800 count on the surface street, however, there was over 70,000 that passed by on the 
202. He added that this would be different if there were retail to pull the people off the freeway.  

 
 In response to Mayor Smith’s questions, Mr. Tippitts explained the possibility of a psychological 

barrier that would prevent people from crossing the freeway to shop. He added that it would 
depend on what retail is there that would cause people to drive across the freeway to get to it. 

 
 Mr. Tippitts continued with the presentation and advised that visibility was a weakness and that 

retail was a strength due to the lack of competition. He added that there was a lot of opportunity 
as to what retailer could be attracted to this site. He noted that vacancy was also a strength in 
as there are not a lot of vacancies in the area. 

 
 Councilwoman Higgins commented on statements in the report concerning housing growth and 

said that the report did not include Mountain Bridge where 800 houses are being built. She also 
mentioned the housing developments at Val Vista and the 202, as well as Red Mountain and 
Las Sendas. 

 
 Mr. Kjar concurred with Councilwoman Higgins and stated that there was growth in that area but 

when developers look at growth of an area, a few thousand houses is not considered significant.  
 
 Councilwoman Higgins commented that statements in the report cited the area of the Longbow 

site as the northeast corner of Higley and McDowell and stated that the Longbow site was 
actually on the southwest corner of the 202 and Recker Road. 

 
 Mr. Tippets remarked that with the population growth from 2000 to 2015, the Recker site 

exceeds the other sites with respect to growth, which would provide a great opportunity for retail 
sales. 

 
 In response to questions from Councilmember Richins, Mr. Tippetts explained that there were 

many contributing factors to the shrinking residential areas in the Downtown and Riverview 
areas.  He advised that there were urban renewal projects in which shrinking residential areas 
are revitalized and the population growth increases.  



Study Session 
September 9, 2010 
Page 14 
 
 

 
 Mayor Smith remarked that the population of Dobson Ranch is much less than it was 15 years 

ago. He advised that even though it is an extremely nice area, there has been a drastic 
reduction in population due to young people leaving home. He added that the Mesa School 
District has reported that the area has had the most significant drop in school age population. 

 
 Mr. Tippetts provided a statistical analysis of the Recker site which summarized household 

trends, income, per capita household income, and education. (See Pages 20, 21, 22, & 23 of 
Attachment 1). 

 
Mr. Tippetts summarized the strengths and weaknesses of each site and said that each 
individual retailer could determine if a specific characteristic was either a strength or a 
weakness. (See Page 24 of Attachment 1) 

  
 Responding to a question from Councilwoman Higgins Mr. Kjar clarified that the information in 

the report with regard to the number of employees at certain businesses was derived from the 
City of Mesa’s Economic Development Department. 

 
 Mr. Tippetts advised that the statistics on each of the sites in regards to establishments and 

employees came from the data vendor that provides the demographic information. 
 
 Mayor Smith advised that the Cubs were looking at the same data as the Council and would be 

trying to identify what specific opportunities would work best in a Wrigleyville environment. 
Mayor Smith thanked Mr. Tippitts and Mr.Kjar for the presentation. 

 
4. Hear reports on meetings and/or conferences attended. 
 
 There were no reports on meetings and/or conferences attended. 
 
5. Scheduling of meetings and general information.   
 
 City Manager Christopher Brady stated that the meeting schedule is as follows: 
  
 September 9, 2010, 4:00 p.m. – Community & Neighborhood Services Committee 
 
 September 9, 2010, 6:00 p.m – Mayor’s “Conversation with the Community”  
 
 Friday, September 10, 2010, 6:00 p.m. – Mesa Arts Center Session Kick-off Party 
 
 Mayor Smith added that the Mesa Sister Cities Association Concert will take place on Friday, 

September 10, 2010 at 7:00 p.m. at the Mesa Arts Center, Ikeda Theater as part of the Kick-off 
Party. 

 
6. Items from citizens present.   
 
 There were no items from citizens present.  
 
7. Convene an Executive Session. 
 



Study Session 
September 9, 2010 
Page 15 
 
 

It was moved by Vice Mayor Jones, seconded by Councilmember Richins, that the Council 
adjourn the Study Session at 10:09 a.m. and enter into an Executive Session. 
 
Mayor Smith declared the motion carried unanimously by those members present. 
      
a. Discussion or consultation with the City Attorney in order to consider the City’s position 

and instruct the City Attorney regarding the City’s position regarding contracts that are 
the subject of negotiations, in pending or contemplated litigation or in settlement 
discussions conducted in order to avoid or resolve litigation. (A.R.S. §38-431.03A (4))  
Discussion or consultation for legal advice with the City Attorney. (A.R.S. §38-431.03A 
(3))  Discussion or consultation with designated representatives of the City in order to 
consider the City’s position and instruct the City’s representatives regarding negotiations 
for the purchase, sale, or lease of real property.  (A.R.S. §38-431.03A (7))   

 
1. Waveyard 
2. Chicago Cubs Spring Training 
3. Proposed Police Substation 
4. Thompson Diversified LLC v. Mesa, LC2010-000656-001 

 
8.         Adjournment. 
 

Without objection, the Executive Session adjourned at 11:50 a.m.  
 

 
________________________________ 

                  SCOTT SMITH, MAYOR 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________ 
LINDA CROCKER, CITY CLERK 
 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Study 
Session of the City Council of Mesa, Arizona, held on the 9th day of September, 2010.  I further certify 
that the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present. 

 
         
    ___________________________________ 
          LINDA CROCKER, CITY CLERK 
Baa/bdw 
(Attachments -2) 



Study Session 
September 9,2010 

Attachment 2 
Page 1 of 8 

mesa 
Zoning Ordinance Update 


Report on Land Use Changes 

Relative to the Present Zoning 


Ordinance 

Presentation to 

City Council Study Session 

September 9, 2010 

Land Use - Impact - Form 

Balanced Emphasis Leads to More Predictable Results 

Form 

Activities, Use, Spacing, Buffering 

Res Density Orientation 


Land Use Impact 

1 



Study Session 
September 9,2010 

Attachment 2 
Page 2 of 8 

======-----=--=------ ---- 
Study Session Schedule 

City Council 

Scheduled Discussion of Changes 


9/2: Revisions to Development Standards 
9/9: Revisions to Land Uses and Districts 

(comparing Update & Present Zoning Code) 

9/16: Revisions to Administration & 
Processing 

Revisions: Single Residence 

1. 	 Ace. Living Quarters: Delete req that ALQ 
"Shall Not be Leased or Rented" 

2. 	 Commercial Uses: Allow Retail Stores, 
restaurants, & Offices in Single Residence 
Districts wI Special Use Permit 

a. Max Floor Area: 1500 sf - not counting Res. 

b. Req'd to Front on both Arterial & Local Streets 

3. 	 Add RSL District Options 

2 



Study Session 
September 9, 2010 

Attachment 2 
Page 3 of 8 

~~==~~==~~ 

Revisions: Multiple Residence 

1. 	 Provisions for small commercial uses 

(as described for Single Res. Districts) 

2. 	 Density Increases, return to pre-1988 levels: 
a. RM-2: From 12 to 15 dulac 

b. RM-3: From 17 to 20 dulac 

c. RM-4: From 25 to 30 dulac 

d. NewRM-5:Max43du/ac 

3. Urban Designator Options 
50' max height, Urban style setbacks 

~ 	 .....~ 
-" Revisions: Commercial 

1. 	 "By-right" Option for Multiple Residence Uses 
for mixed use-style projects 

2. 	 Allow Commercial Plant Nurseries in LC 
District by Special Use Permit 

3. 	 Allow Research & Development Uses in GC 
and MX districts 

4. 	 Allow Personal Services & Small Retail in OC 

5. 	 Allow Small Restaurants « 1,500 sf) as 

Accessory in OC Districts 


6. 	 Allow Farmer's Markets in LC wi Temp Use 
Permit 

6 

3 



Study Session 
September 9,2010 

Attachment 2 
Page 4 of 8 

evisions: Commercia 
Splitting Up Comm. Recreation Classification 

a. "Bars": Council U.P. in LC, By-right in GC 

b. 	Small Scale Comm. Recreation (Indoors) 
· Bowling alleys and Billiard/Pool Halls* 

< 50,000 sqft - "by right': > 50,000 sqft - SUP 
· *Pool halls w/ Rest liq license: by right in LC. 

*Pool halls w/ Bar liq license: CUP in LC district, 
By right use in GC 


· Small Scale: Arcades, Card Rooms, Dance Studios 


c. 	 Large Scale Comm Recreation (Outdoors) 
. Stadia, Arenas, Mini-golf, driving range: GC district 

7 

~~==--~==~-.-~ 

Revisions: Employment/Industrial 
• 	Recycling: Smaller Scale - Less Strict - Allow 

"Can/Bottle Buyback" as indoor Activity in 
Commercial Districts, Outdoor "buy back" in LC 
w/ SUP, Major recycling in HI or CUP in GI 

• 	Add Specific Airport Activities: 
• Aircraft Maintenance, Refueling, Terminal 

Parking Lots 

• 	Clarify Plant Nurseries allowed w/ SUP 

• Added HI District, Remove CUP Option in GC 
for High Impact Industrial Uses 

8 



Study Session 
September 9, 2010 

Attachment 2 
Page 5 of 8 

~ 	 ~
......... 


TMX vs. Form-Based Code 

• Staff is presently evaluating the idea of removing 
the TMX district from the Zoning Code Update 
Final Draft. 

• Basic concern relates to two different zoning 
approaches being used to tackle the same issue: 
Transit Oriented Development. The result may 
be differing development patterns, or competing 
development rules, at same rail station. 

9 

MX District vs Form Ba"secfCode 
TMX 

• Primarily Narrative 

• Fewer Illustrations 
• Land Use Based 

Organization & Priority 
• Site Plan designed to 

Meet Code 
• 	Two Levels or Degrees 

of Scale 

• Initially More Familiar 
• Addresses Sites as 

Individual Parts 

FBC 
• Primarily Illustrations 

& Tables 

• Narrative Fills in Gaps 
• Predictability in 

Physical Forms 

• 	Six Levels (Transects) 
• Regulating Plan: 

• Fits Context of Site, 
• Organizes Area to 


Work as Whole 


10 

5 



Study Session 
September 9, 2010 

Attachment 2 
Page 6 of 8 

TMX District: Typical Format 

.- ... trir~ 	 : ..... ·'·rI'.r' ..:~ ••.J'.."".fafr"l'O:1I:o ""',' ':!:~:l·,~ ...:.r.:""'Ij,:<' 'f"~::: 

,. ; • .,-. .... ~ ":" • Oof :''''••a;t{~' ., I:.o_~ ':l:!'~r_ ,.,... "" ,- ;.',",,:,,~.O-, :,. ...... ~ 
'_';"''''{.~. ".~'.•~ ,~" :~f':~ .~:=v:· ~:L: -,!t •.:: ,."",.... 0.:.. '.!"':"~" , ..... . 

• ',,,,,,,,,,, , ..... <: d ...... " &- .r:-.t"'-' t;".....·~~I ','_ '!""" ~.-:.,.'1 1':"""'\ '.l 
•"-'t' _r~' ., "'\""", _, LJ~..:. ~:,:. ~((;, '.:':":I~'; ::; ... ", :-';~I:)~'" !:, '.1.1 . ..;. :~ .~ ~;._ .:~ • 

~ .... u. "'.: , ..,., 
::":;(.I~:"':l-.""_4""!'I:»t\.:",..,;,,",~.,,,_.u.~ , I """ •. ", ,·.~I.:., .." ' 

.... 1;: ,. ;" j, •. , •. ~ ... , ,: • 

',<.,1.,;"_.,, 

1"...: ...., ~:."." '""'r" '.1."", I .. ,', .,,' 


.:........ ,...,: .. .
.._-,,' "," ... . 
~, •. " .. I, "0" 

:...."'~'!...1,. '~'''''.:.:' ' .. ,. ," .' 

.... :.~'."." ..".~ '''"'."'''-'..... :c. 


r",.~ :>>t.-,. l..:.t<r.,. >I'-.!--. ,1".,,-, ::-..:::. {O't: ;.,.,""' .",,_ :.r-v; 'l" 
::..ot!·... ".·.~'.. .!..1 A:!o •. ",;-~ ,.~~. to,",: '/:i:.1 ,,":~, "\""'c'."~: :, 
". -.""';"I::-~lL_: -'::'0":' el..t:. _" _7..... *.". '-=' ~.J.'1:"'I:1.1 mf'I!"!:"~~~ 
:'",,:f '~'_'••• ::.4I " • :.. ... ~·"(:t.• :: ..... !t~·,c:lo_-·..... :Lt!l ~..101'( 

11 

FBC: Typical Format 

12 

6 



Study Session 
September 9,2010 

Attachment 2 
Page 7 of 8 

Duany Plater-Zyberk and Company 

Smart Code V 9.2 


13 

FBC: Regulating Plan Example 

Arlington, VA: Columbia Pike FBC, Town Center Regulating Plan 

7 



Study SessIon 
September 9, 2010 

Attachment 2 
Page 8 of 8 

- - -----"-

Does the Council Concur 
with these Revisions? 

Questions? 

[Planning.lnfo@MesaAz.gov 

www.MesaAz.gov 

15 

8 

http:www.MesaAz.gov
mailto:Planning.lnfo@MesaAz.gov


















































Presentation to

City Council Study Session

September 9, 2010

1

awebste
Text Box
Study SessionSeptember 9, 2010Attachment 2Page 1 of 15



Land Use - Impact - Form

Balanced Emphasis Leads to More Predictable Results

Land Use Impact Form

Land Use
Impact

Form

C
u

rr
e

n
t 

O
rd

in
a
n

c
e

Activities, Use, Spacing, Buffering, Aesthetics, Bulk,

Res Density Orientation Site Design

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 U

p
d

a
te

2

awebste
Text Box
Study SessionSeptember 9, 2010Attachment 2Page 2 of 15



Study Session Schedule
City Council 

Scheduled Discussion of Changes

9/2: Revisions to Development Standards

9/9: Revisions to Land Uses and Districts 
(comparing Update & Present Zoning Code)

9/16: Revisions to Administration & 
Processing

3

awebste
Text Box
Study SessionSeptember 9, 2010Attachment 2Page 3 of 15



Revisions: Single Residence

1. Acc. Living Quarters: Delete req that ALQ 
“Shall Not be Leased or Rented”

2. Commercial Uses: Allow Retail Stores, 
restaurants, & Offices in Single Residence 
Districts w/ Special Use Permit

a. Max Floor Area: 1500 sf - not counting Res.

b. Req’d to Front on both Arterial & Local Streets

3. Add RSL District Options

4

awebste
Text Box
Study SessionSeptember 9, 2010Attachment 2Page 4 of 15



1. Provisions for small commercial uses 

(as described for Single Res. Districts)

2. Density Increases, return to pre-1988 levels:

a. RM-2: From 12 to 15 du/ac

b. RM-3: From 17 to 20 du/ac

c. RM-4: From 25 to 30 du/ac

d. New RM-5: Max 43 du/ac

3. Urban Designator Options

• 50’ max height, Urban style setbacks

5

Revisions: Multiple Residence

awebste
Text Box
Study SessionSeptember 9, 2010Attachment 2Page 5 of 15



Revisions: Commercial
1. “By-right” Option for Multiple Residence Uses 

for mixed use-style projects

2. Allow Commercial Plant Nurseries in LC 
District by Special Use Permit

3. Allow Research & Development Uses in GC 
and MX districts

4. Allow Personal Services & Small Retail in OC

5. Allow Small Restaurants (< 1,500 sf) as 
Accessory in OC Districts

6. Allow Farmer’s Markets in LC w/ Temp Use 
Permit

6

awebste
Text Box
Study SessionSeptember 9, 2010Attachment 2Page 6 of 15



Revisions: Commercial
Splitting Up Comm. Recreation Classification

a. “Bars”: Council U.P. in LC, By-right in GC 

b. Small Scale Comm. Recreation (Indoors)

• Bowling alleys and Billiard/Pool Halls*                         
< 50,000 sqft  - “by right”,  >  50,000 sqft - SUP

• *Pool halls w/ Rest liq license: by right in LC. 

• *Pool halls w/ Bar liq license: CUP in LC district,      
By right use in GC

• Small Scale: Arcades, Card Rooms, Dance Studios

c. Large Scale Comm Recreation (Outdoors)

• Stadia, Arenas, Mini-golf, driving range: GC district

7

awebste
Text Box
Study SessionSeptember 9, 2010Attachment 2Page 7 of 15



Revisions: Employment/Industrial
 Recycling: Smaller Scale - Less Strict – Allow  

“Can/Bottle Buyback” as indoor Activity in 
Commercial Districts, Outdoor “buy back” in LC 
w/ SUP, Major recycling in HI or CUP in GI

 Add Specific Airport Activities: 

 Aircraft Maintenance, Refueling, Terminal 
Parking Lots

 Clarify Plant Nurseries allowed w/ SUP

 Added HI District, Remove CUP Option in GC 
for High Impact Industrial Uses

8

awebste
Text Box
Study SessionSeptember 9, 2010Attachment 2Page 8 of 15



TMX vs. Form-Based Code

 Staff is presently evaluating the idea of removing 
the TMX district from the Zoning Code Update –
Final Draft.

 Basic concern relates to two different zoning 
approaches being used to tackle the same issue: 
Transit Oriented Development. The result may 
be differing development patterns, or competing 
development rules, at same rail station.

9

awebste
Text Box
Study SessionSeptember 9, 2010Attachment 2Page 9 of 15



TMX District vs Form Based Code
TMX FBC

 Primarily Narrative

 Fewer Illustrations

 Land Use Based 
Organization & Priority

 Site Plan designed to 
Meet Code

 Two Levels or Degrees 
of Scale

 Initially More Familiar

 Addresses Sites as 
Individual Parts

 Primarily Illustrations 
& Tables

 Narrative Fills in Gaps

 Predictability in    
Physical Forms

 Six Levels  (Transects)

 Regulating Plan:

 Fits Context of Site, 

 Organizes  Area  to 
Work as Whole

10

awebste
Text Box
Study SessionSeptember 9, 2010Attachment 2Page 10 of 15



TMX District: Typical Format

11

awebste
Text Box
Study SessionSeptember 9, 2010Attachment 2Page 11 of 15



FBC: Typical Format

12

awebste
Text Box
Study SessionSeptember 9, 2010Attachment 2Page 12 of 15



13

T5

T4

T3

Duany Plater-Zyberk and Company

Smart Code V 9.2

awebste
Text Box
Study SessionSeptember 9, 2010Attachment 2Page 13 of 15



FBC: Regulating Plan Example

14

Arlington, VA: Columbia Pike FBC, Town Center Regulating Plan

awebste
Text Box
Study SessionSeptember 9, 2010Attachment 2Page 14 of 15



Planning.Info@MesaAz.gov

www.MesaAz.gov

15

awebste
Text Box
Study SessionSeptember 9, 2010Attachment 2Page 15 of 15




